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Q. Were you b o r n i n A l b e r t a ? 
A. Y e s , N o r t h w e s t T e r r i t o r i e s t h e n . 
Q. Can you g i v e us the year? 
A. 1897. I ' l l be 92 n e x t month, on the 3rd of June. 
Q. When you say N o r t h w e s t T e r r i t o r i e s , what a r e a was t h a t i n ? 
A. Around t h e Andrew a r e a . T h a t ' s where my f o l k s were l i v i n g t h e n . 
Q. Now were your p a r e n t s b o r n i n A l b e r t a or Northwest T e r r i t o r i e s as 

w e l l ? 
A. My Dad was. My Mother was b o r n i n P r i n c e A l b e r t Saskatchewan. 
Q. How about your g r a n d p a r e n t s ? 
A. My G r a n d f a t h e r , on my F a t h e r ' s s i d e , was b o r n i n S c o t l a n d i n 1835, I 

t h i n k . 
Q. And your Grandmother? 
A. Grandmother was b o r n i n Y o r k , what's now c a l l e d T o r o n t o . 
Q. So y o u r f a m i l y has been i n Canada f o r a number of g e n e r a t i o n s . 
A. Y e s , e x c e p t my G r a n d f a t h e r came from S c o t l a n d . 
Q. What made him come t o Canada? 
A. W e l l , I suppose he d i d l i k e a l o t of o t h e r p e o p l e d i d . He was a 

young boy, I t h i n k he was 12 y e a r s o l d when he came t o Canada, 
w o r k i n g f o r t h e Hudson's Bay Company. 

Q. Oh, t h a t ' s i n t e r e s t i n g . Can you t e l l u s , d i d you know a n y t h i n g about 
h i s l i f e w i t h the Hudson's Bay Company? 

A. No, I d o n ' t , I don't know a n y t h i n g about h i s l i f e t h e n a t a l l . 
Q. A l l r i g h t , have you l i v e d i n any o t h e r p a r t of Canada b e f o r e you came 

to A t habasca? 
A. No, n o t me. My f o l k s , e i t h e r . Mother and Dad were m a r r i e d i n P r i n c e 

A l b e r t . Mother was b o r n i n P r i n c e A l b e r t , Dad was b o r n i n F o r t 
Edmonton and t h e y were m a r r i e d i n F o r t Edmonton, t h a t ' s the way i t 
was. 

Q. They were m a r r i e d i n F o r t Edmonton, d i d you say? 
A. Yes, t h e y were. 
Q. Then what made you come to Athabasca? 
A. I n 1930. 
Q. I n 1930, and what brought you here? 
A. Free l a n d , homesteads. 
Q. Land of o p p o r t u n i t y , eh? 
A. Y e s , y e s . 
Q. So what d i d you g e t ? A q u a r t e r of f r e e l a n d ? 
A. We had a h a l f s e c t i o n . 
Q. Oh, you got a h a l f s e c t i o n . 
A. I had a q u a r t e r of homestead and a q u a r t e r of s e t t l e m e n t , I was 

r e t u r n e d from the F i r s t W o r l d War. 
Q. Oh, I s e e , so anyone who f o u g h t i n the F i r s t W o r l d War got t h e i r 

q u a r t e r ? 
A. Got a q u a r t e r of l a n d f r e e , y e s . 
Q. I imagine you had t o meet c e r t a i n r e q u i r e m e n t s , though, r i g h t ? 

C l e a r i n g and b u i l d i n g ? 
A. No, i f you had a homestead. I f you d i d n ' t have a homestead and j u s t 

had t h a t q u a r t e r , why you had to t h e n . But I had a homestead, you 
see, and so I g o t the h a l f s e c t i o n , I got them b o t h t o g e t h e r , one 
r i g h t a l o n g s i d e the o t h e r . 



Q. Where d i d you g e t m a r r i e d , Mr. L e n n i e ? D i d you meet your w i f e here? D i d 
you meet Mrs. L e n n i e i n Athabasca? 

A. No, I met h e r down e a s t o f Edmonton, Chipman. 
Q. Chipman, I s e e . And so were you m a r r i e d b e f o r e you came here? 
A. Y e s , I was m a r r i e d seven y e a r s when I came h e r e . 
Q. Oh, I s e e . D i d you have a f a m i l y then? 
A. I had seven c h i l d r e n when we moved h e r e . 
Q. Oh, you a l r e a d y had seven c h i l d r e n when you moved h e r e . D i d you have, how 

many a l t o g e t h e r i n your f a m i l y ? 
A. We had t e n a l t o g e t h e r . 
Q. Oh, w o n d e r f u l b i g f a m i l y . 
A. Y e s , s i x boys, no s i x g i r l s and f o u r boys. 
Q. And Gordon i s one o f your boys. 
A. Yes, Gordon i s one, y e s . 
Q. Yes, I went t o s c h o o l w i t h Gordon, you know. 
A. Oh, d i d you? 
Q. Yes, I d i d . We were i n h i g h s c h o o l t o g e t h e r so I know him q u i t e w e l l , 

y e s . B e s i d e s the s o l d i e r s e t t l e m e n t l a n d t h a t you g o t , the o t h e r q u a r t e r , 
how much d i d you pay f o r i t ? D i d you have to pay a n y t h i n g a t a l l ? 

A. I t was t e n d o l l a r s f o r a homestead. We used to g e t a homestead f o r t e n 
d o l l a r s and t h a t ' s what I g o t , was a homestead and I took my s o l d i e r ' s 
g r a n t r i g h t b e s i d e i t on t h e same s e c t i o n . 

Q. D i d you s a y you got a g r a n t ? 
A. W e l l , t h e y c a l l e d i t a g r a n t , s o l d i e r ' s g r a n t . 
Q. But was i t i n the form o f money o r j u s t the lan d ? 
A. No, i t was, w e l l we c o u l d ' v e g o t i t i n the form o f money o r we c o u l d take 

t h i s q u a r t e r of l a n d . had one q u a r t e r a l r e a d y so I took the o t h e r , t o o . 
Q. So d i d you, was t h e r e any c l e a r i n g on e i t h e r one of those q u a r t e r s ? 
A. No, n o t a t h i n g , t h e r e wasn't a s t i c k c l e a r e d o f f , no b u i l d i n g s o r 

n o t h i n g , I had to b u i l d them a l l . 
Q. W e l l , what d i d you do? T e l l us about the f i r s t days t h a t you spent h e r e . 

I mean, you've got seven c h i l d r e n , a w i f e , and no b u i l d i n g s , no n o t h i n g , 
t e l l us about those t i m e s . 

A. W e l l , our c h i l d r e n was born a t T o f i e l d , f i v e of them I guess, y e s , f i v e , 
we moved to Chipman. My w i f e ' s f o l k s l i v e d t h e r e a t Chipman and l a n d was 
p r e t t y h i g h around t h e r e t h e n , you know, and not much money t o buy i t 
w i t h . I had bought a q u a r t e r from the s o l d i e r s e t t l e m e n t b r a n c h and so I 
took t h i s h a l f s e c t i o n s i d e by s i d e and we moved on i t . There wasn't 
n o t h i n g on i t , I had t o do i t a l l . So I come up here and I b u i l t the 
house, j u s t a temporary house a t the t i m e . 

Q. Now, e x p l a i n your temporary house, was i t a l i t t l e shack? 
A. I t wasn't v e r y b i g , you know, a l o g b u i l d i n g and i t was 30 f e e t l o n g and 

20 f e e t w ide. 
Q. Tha t ' s not v e r y s m a l l , t h a t ' s p r e t t y b i g . T h a t ' s 600 square f e e t . 

D i d you b u i l d i t a l o n e ? 
A. Y e s , I b u i l t i t a l o n e . I d i d n ' t b r i n g the f a m i l y up u n t i l I had the house 

done e x c e p t t h e r o o f . I had no r o o f y e t and i t was g e t t i n g on t o w i n t e r . 
Q. I see, so you l e f t them back. 
A. So I l e f t them down t h e r e t i l l I got the house f i n i s h e d . 
Q. What d i d you have i n t h a t f i r s t house? What about beds, d i d you make your 

own beds? 
A. No, we had beds t h a t were bought when we were on the farm a t Chipman. 



A. And we had a new s t o v e was bought a t Chipman, new k i t c h e n range. And we 
had a c o a l h e a t e r , t h e y u s e d to c a l l i t , j u s t t o burn c o a l i n . And when 
we g o t h e r e , i t was no good cause t h e r e was no c o a l h e r e , i t was a l l wood. 
So I had t o g e t a wood s t o v e . So I got one of them a i r t i g h t s . 

Q. So how l o n g b e f o r e your f a m i l y came then? When d i d your w i f e j o i n you? 
A. I brought h e r up one day, I t h i n k we got h e r e on about the 15th of 

November, somewhere around t h e r e . 
Q. 1930? 
A. 1930. 
Q. That was j u s t d u r i n g the D e p r e s s i o n . 
A. Yes, j u s t s t a r t i n g the D e p r e s s i o n . 
Q. Tough t i m e . 
A. Oh, I ' l l say we had tough t i m e s , boy! 
Q. D i d you have your own c a t t l e , cows? 
A. Yes, I had seven m i l k cows and some young s t o c k , I don't remember how many 

i t was. 
Q. Yes, and what o t h e r a n i m a l s ? C h i c k e n s , d i d you have any c h i c k e n s ? 
A. We had c h i c k e n s . 
Q. P i g s ? 
A. We had p i g s . We brought two p i g s to the homestead. 
Q. You must have some s t o r i e s or some not so good memories about the 

D e p r e s s i o n I i m a g i n e , eh? 
A. Yes, i t was v e r y h a r d . 
Q. How d i d the D e p r e s s i o n a f f e c t you a c t u a l l y ? 
A. W e l l , you s e e , you c o u l d n ' t s e l l a n y t h i n g . The o n l y t h i n g we c o u l d s e l l 

r e a l l y was wood. Cause t h e r e wasn't enough f a r m i n g i n the c o u n t r y here 
and t h e r e was no p l a c e t o s e l l g r a i n e x c e p t t o the o t h e r f a r m e r , homestead 
o r whatever out i n the c o u n t r y . 

Q. W e l l even i f you had s o l d a n y t h i n g , i t wasn't worth v e r y much. 
A. O a t s , 15 c e n t s a b u s h e l . Wheat was 45 and b a r l e y 25. 
Q. When you say s e l l i n g wood, was the A t habasca Power P l a n t wood f i r e d ? 
A. Y e s , i t d i d burn wood when i t s t a r t e d up. 
Q. So t h i s i s what you mean by wood, i t was c o r d wood f o r f i r e wood. 
A. Yes, i t was c o r d wood, y e s . 
Q. F o r the creamery a l s o , maybe? 
A. Yes, f o r the creamery, t o o . They had the power p l a n t , creamery d i d . 
Q. U n i o n H o t e l maybe as w e l l ? 
A. Yes, U n i o n H o t e l burned wood. 
Q. The h o s p i t a l , the h o p i t a l d i d as w e l l , d i d i t not? 
A. Y e s , the h o s p i t a l burned wood. 
Q. How much would you g e t a cord? 
A. Two d o l l a r s a c o r d . 
Q. And was t h a t p o p l a r ? 
A. That was p o p l a r . A n y t h i n g you c o u l d — 
Q. Tamarack? 
A. Tamarack was two and a h a l f a c o r d . 
Q. Oh, i t was a l i t t l e h i g h e r . 
A. Yes, i t was a l i t t l e b e t t e r wood. 
Q. Y e s , b e t t e r b u r n i n g wood, wasn't i t ? 
A. Y e s , b e t t e r b u r n i n g wood, y e s , but tamarack was s t a r t i n g t o p l a y out about 

t h a t time so went t o p o p l a r . 



Q. Y e s , was t h a t r e a l l y your o n l y s o u r c e of income then? 
A. That was f o r t h r e e y e a r s b e f o r e we got you know, some l a n d c l e a r e d up, and 

c o u l d r a i s e a l i t t l e g r a i n . I n e v e r s o l d g r a i n because I j u s t r a i s e d i t 
f o r f e e d , and we a l w a y s kept p i g s , and m i l k cows. 

Q. Were you a b l e t o s e l l some p i g s i n the e a r l y t h i r t i e s ? 
A. Yea, t h e y were about two d o l l a r s a p i e c e f o r a p i g . 
Q. Now, how? You would have to s h i p i t ? 
A. They used to had a t r u c k i n h e r e , J e f f Coke and Elmer L u k e r . 
Q. Oh y e s , now what would t h e y charge you, would they p i c k up the hogs? 
A. Yes, t h e y g e t coming r i g h t t o your p l a c e and p i c k them up. 
Q. And what would t h e y charge you f o r ? 
A. Two d o l l a r s f o r a hundred pounds. 
Q. That d i d n ' t l e a v e you v e r y much? 
A. No, t h a t d i d n ' t l e a v e v e r y much. 
Q. W e l l how d i d you manage? You must have r a i s e d a b i g g a r d e n , l o t s o f 

p o t a t o e s . 
A. Oh, we r a i s e d l o t s of p o t a t o e s and a b i g g a r d e n , my w i f e was a good 

g a r d e n e r she j u s t r a i s e d l o t s of g a rden. 
Q. Yes. Because a f t e r a l l you d i d have a l a r g e f a m i l y t o s u p p o r t ? 
A. Yea, we had a b i g f a m i l y t o s u p p o r t but a t the same time t h e y h e l p e d w i t h 

the g arden too you know. 
Q. Y e s . Yes. 
A. And t h e n we had l o t s of b l u e b e r r i e s them days. 
Q. W e l l t h e r e were a l o t of many k i n d s of b e r r i e s , weren't t h e r e ? 
A. Yea, and we p i c k e d b e r r i e s and s e l l the b e r r i e s . 
Q. Oh, you s o l d the b e r r i e s as w e l l ? 
A. Yes, y e a . 
Q. How much would you g e t a pound? 
A. W e l l I s o l d them as low as t h r e e c e n t s a pound, but the average was about 

f i v e . 
Q. Is t h a t r i g h t ? 
A. Ten c e n t s would be a u n b e l i e v a b l y h i g h , you g e t t h a t maybe a t the s t a r t o f 

the s e a s o n , you know? 
Q. But t h e p r i c e c e r t a i n l y i n c r e a s e d a f t e r t h a t because I remember when we 

were k i d s when we used to go p i c k i n g b l u e b e r r i e s , and we would b r i n g them 
i n t o A t h a b a s c a , but I'm sure we got around t h i r t y - f i v e , f o r t y , even f o r t y -
f i v e c e n t s a p a i l . 

A. Oh y e s , i t d i d l a t e r on, y e s . 
Q. But t h a t was i n the f o r t i e s . 
A. Yes. But i n the t h i r t i e s we d i d n ' t g e t t h a t . 
Q. No, but t h e n e v e r y b i t h e l p e d , d i d n ' t i t ? 
A. Oh y e s , e v e r y b i t h e l p e d you know? 
Q. Yes. 
A. I t h i n k I spend t h r e e y e a r s t h e r e t h a t I n e v e r had a penny of c a s h . We'd 

a l l t r a d e and b a r t e r , you know? 
Q. R e a l l y ? So t h e r e was a l o t of t h a t t r a d i n g and b a r t e r i n g back and f o r t h i n 

t h o s e days? 
A. Oh y e s . 
Q. Who were some of your n e i g h b o r s ? 
A. W e l l , do you know the S a u e r s , any of the Sauers? 



Q. Yes. 
A. Well they're my cl o s e s t neighbors, they're my cousins. 
Q. Oh, they're your cousins? 
A. Yes. 
Q. Matt and George? 
A. George and Matt and Frank, and— 
Q. Yes. 
A. Tim, they're a l l cousins, our mothers were s i s t e r s . 
Q. Oh, I didn't know that. I see, well, who else now would have been i n 

that? Is that what you c a l l the Ferguson area? 
A. Ferguson area, when we moved i n there that f a l l , there was - s t a r t from the -

along the south of the o l d t r a i l road south of where the road i s now. 
Let's see, who's i n there? 

Q. Are you t a l k i n g about the Overaker corner there? 
A. Yes, the Overaker corner and then south. That's where the old t r a i l used 

to go. 
Q. We c a l l that Ferguson Road now. 
A. Ferguson Road, Ferguson was on the north end of i t , and he was the f i r s t 

homesteader i n there, so they c a l l e d the d i s t r i c t a f t e r him, and the 
school, we had a school there and we c a l l e d i t Ferguson School. 

Q. Oh, he was one of the f i r s t s e t t l e r s ? 
A. The f i r s t s e t t l e r s i n Athabasca. 
Q. Now when you say t r a i l , why do you say t r a i l , where did that t r a i l come 

from? 
A. Pardon? 
Q. Where did that t r a i l when you talked about t r a i l — 
A. Like I say, Ferguson was on the north end of i t up by the base l i n e there, 

and then south down through, f i r s t you come through my brothers, two 
brothers had homesteads there, and John Berg and Donald Booth, then i t 
went on south and come to a - there was a MacDonald there one time, he 
didn't stay only two years. 

Q. So when you t a l k about the t r a i l , you're just t a l k i n g about a road that 
went past some of the s e t t l e r s . 

A. Yes, a road going through the bush. There was no road, that's why we 
c a l l e d i t a t r a i l because there was r e a l l y , you know, just to cut a road 
through and you used i t . 

Q. Who cut the t r a i l ? You people yourselves? 
A. Us people ourselves. 
Q. So you r e a l l y , could you use horses and wagon or sleigh? Or was i t just 

horseback that you drove down that t r a i l ? 
A. Oh no, we went on horseback, or wagon, s l e i g h , whatever. 
Q. You could go through with a wagon? 
A. Yes. Ferguson up at the north end there, he had an o l d Model T when he 

come i n there. He used to drive up and down. 
Q. Oh, did he? So how many acres did you clear that f i r s t year, Mr. Lennie? 
A. F i r s t year I could c l e a r f i v e . 
Q. Now t e l l us how you went about c l e a r i n g . Was i t a l l by hand? 
A A l l by hand with an axe and a grub-hoe. 
Q. What d i d the grub-hoe, I'm not s u r e — 
A. I t had a long handle on l i k e an axe and i t had a hoe, you know what a hoe 

i s , well t h i s was a heavy hoe. We c a l l e d i t a grub-hoe and used i t f o r 
grubbing out roots and s t u f f . 



Q. Well, a c t u a l l y , the bigger trees, you didn't chop them down. With the 
grub-hoe you exposed the roots, chopped them o f f -

A. Yes, exposed the roots and chopped them o f f and then sometimes they stand 
there and the wind would blow them down. 

Q. You didn't use horses and a chain to knock them down? 
A. Oh, I d i d some, the smaller ones. 
Q. And what was your f i r s t crop, d i d you plant a crop then as soon as -
A. I t was a l l oats. 
Q. Now, getting ahead of myself a l i t t l e , once you got these roots and 

what-not picked or cleared, d i d you, or how did you plow i t ? 
A. Well, when I got the bush o f f and roots and s t u f f cut o f f , then we had 

what they c a l l a brake plow, was a s p e c i a l plow for - had a long 
mow-board, what they c a l l a mow-board on the plow. I t ' s a thing that turns 
the land over. 

Q. So i t was a breaking plow. 
A. Yes, i t was a breaking plow. 
Q. One horse, two horses pu l l i n g ? 
A. No, they had to have two or four mostly. 
Q. And then you had to pick roots? 
A. We were picking roots and rocks and whatever, and then we'd disk i t with a 

disk, a horse disk, and work i t up, t i l l i t up to ready for seed bed. 
Q. Did you have harrows, as well? 
A. Yes, we had harrows, yes. That's a l l the machinery there was i n them 

days, a brake plow and stubble plow, and disk and harrows, and a seed 
d r i l l . 

Q. I see. When you t a l k about the stubble plow, now -
A. That was, you used that the second year for plowing because i t would turn 

i t over, while a brake plow would just go through and make kind of l i k e a 
d i t c h . 

Q. Oh, so once you put a crop i n , then you could use a stubble plow? 
A. Yes, a f t e r you had a crop i n , then you used a stubble plow. 
Q. What was your f i r s t crop? 
A. I generally had oats mostly, sometimes I'd sow wheat but mostly oats. 
Q. Well, how d i d you get i t o f f i f that was the only machinery you had? 
A. Oh, I had an old binder. I used to cut i t with a mower and rake i t , you 

know, and stack i t and just feed i t out of the stack that way. Never 
threshed i t . 

Q. Oh, you didn't even thresh i t at f i r s t ? 
A. No. 
Q. So once you got your threshing machine -
A. Yes, we got a binder and started binding i t and threshing i t . 
Q. So how many acres the years a f t e r that, a l i t t l e more each year? 
A. A l i t t l e more each year. I don't remember just how many each year, 

sometimes more, sometimes l e s s . 
Q. Did you have, was i t heavy timber there? 
A. Oh yes, around my place i t was heavy. 
Q. So d i d you eventually clear your whole quarter, both your quarters? 
A. Yes, I eventually did but I f i n a l l y ended up with a cat. 
Q. With a cat. That was i n l a t e r years, of course. 
A. Yes, i n l a t e r years. That was about i n , I don't know, '40, '47 I think, or 

'48. The f i r s t time I got a cat to clear land. 



Q. I see, what would they have charged you i n those years, i n the l a t e '40s? 
What would they have charged you to c l e a r an acre of land? Or was i t by 
the hour? 

A. By the hour, and I paid I think i t was around about $15 an hour, something 
l i k e that. 

Q. I remember the name Gleishman, I believe he had a cat and he did quite a 
b i t of custom work. 

A. Yes, he did a l o t of that work. He had three cats, you see. 
Q. Now, cats l i k e that charge close to a $100 an hour. So, I imagine your 

c h i l d r e n were growing up and helping you with your work. 
A. Oh yes, as they got older and they got old enough, they went out working. 

But I managed to put them a l l through Grade 9. 
Q. Did you? So they went to Ferguson School then. 
A. Yes, that was the f i r s t thing when I got my homestead, I says, I'm gonna 

have a school f i r s t thing, so my children can get to school. Well, two of 
them went to school at T o f i e l d and they had two years, I think, down there 
and then they come up here and then there was a year without a school. So 
we got the school b u i l t . 

Q. Did you help b u i l d the school? 
A. I was the main buil d e r . 
Q. But, of course, i t probably was a log b u i l d i n g , too, wasn't i t ? 
A. Yes, i t was a log b u i l d i n g . We had, there was two guys l i v e d west of me, 

I don't know i f you knew Fodchuks i n Athabasca, Rus s e l l , and you know 
Steve. Well, they were out there on t h e i r homesteads, and I got Russell 
and Steve to hue the logs and that paid o f f t h e i r taxes that way. 

Q. Oh, I see. Who was your f i r s t teacher there? 
A. A fellow by the name of Amber Ross. He came from Lamont. His Dad was a 

minister, a United minister down there. So, I knew him pretty w e l l . So, 
when I moved up here, I kept i n touch with him and I t o l d him we were 
gonna b u i l d and s t a r t t h i s new school d i s t r i c t up here, so he brought his 
boy up and we got him for a teacher. 

Q. That school must've closed i n the '40s or was i t i n the '50s already? 
A. Late '30s. Oh, when i t closed, i n the l a t e '40s, yes, I think so, l a t e 

'40s, somewhere around there, yes. 
Q. So how many of your ch i l d r e n came to Athabasca, attended school i n 

Athabasca? 
A Well, there was seven of them. But the l a s t two are A l i c e and Gordon what 

came there. I was working i n town, working i n the ho t e l , carpenter there 
on the h o t e l , and we moved into town for a year. 

Q. Oh, d i d you? The whole family? 
A. Yes, the whole family. I rented a house i n town and we moved r i g h t i n . 

And Sharon went to school there, Gordon and A l i c e went to school there, 
too, to take t h e i r Grade eleven. 

Q. Is Gordon your youngest ch i l d ? 
A. No, I have three younger than him. Gordon, and then Diane, she's a nurse, 

and Rodney, he's steam engineer, he works i n Rocky Mountain House, and 
Sheila, she's B i l l Kostiw's wife. 

Q. Oh, I see, yes, oh, then Sheila was your youngest c h i l d . 
A. Yes, she's the youngest, yes. 
Q. Oh, of course, yes, yes, I know now who you're speaking of. I'm just 

going to go back a l i t t l e b i t now. My husband, Gene, has been t a l k i n g to 
me about the f a c t that you were i n World War 1, and I wanted you to t e l l 
us a l i t t l e b i t about your experiences. 



A. I don't care to t a l k about i t , no, not over there, no. 
Q. Is that r i g h t ? 
A. I just never got over that and I don't care to t a l k about i t . 
Q. Very good, very good, Mr. Lennie, we can c e r t a i n l y appreciate that. 
A. I've seen too much misery and s u f f e r i n g . 
Q. I could imagine. None of your c h i l d r e n , none of your sons went overseas -
A. They were i n the second war, the two oldest boys. Lester was k i l l e d over 

there. 
Q. One of your boys was -
A. One of my boys, yes. Lester, my second boy. 
Q. Oh w e l l , I can understand why you wouldn't want to be t a l k i n g about wars. 

I was going to ask you also, do you l i v e , Mrs. Lennie s t i l l l i v e s on your 
home place. Does Mrs. Lennie s t i l l l i v e on your home place? 

A. Oh yes, oh yes, she l i v e d t i l l 1950. 
Q. I mean Mrs. Overacker, your daughter, I'm mixed up, that's r i g h t . Mrs. 

Overacker i s your daughter. Is that your home place there? 
A. Yes, i t ' s part of i t . I gave the school d i s t r i c t three acres to b u i l d a 

school on, and that's where she's l i v i n g now, i n that old schoolhouse. 
Q. The r e s t of that farm was yours then. 
A. Yes, the r e s t of i t was mine. I had that and a quarter west of i t . 
Q. That's pretty good land there. 
A. That's good land. That west quarter I had was just a dandy quarter. There 

was no stones and not too many roots when I cleaned i t . Was trees on i t 
but they were f a r apart, kinda open-like. 

Q. T e l l me, how did you get to town because that road that goes there now, 
that pavement, i t wasn't there i n 1930? 

A. The f i r s t time that we went to Athabasca a f t e r we moved there i n the f a l l , 
not the f i r s t time, but I remember i n the spring, f i r s t time i n the 
spring a f t e r i t thawed out, you know, there was no road. Mrs. and I and 
more brothers were going to town and, oh, the road was bad. 

Q. Well, i t was mostly swamp. Which way did you go, did you go through 
Colinton? 

A. I t was a l l swamp. At one time, we had to go through Colinton. Well, I 
made one t r i p around by Colinton. But I never made that again. 

Q. When did you get your f i r s t car, Mr. Lennie? 
A. Our f i r s t car? Well, the f i r s t car I had on the homestead, I had one i n 

T o f i e l d I bought i n 1927, I guess, and here I got my f i r s t i n '45. 
Q. I see, did you have a truck before that f or the farm? 
A. This was a truck. I didn't have nothing before that, just horses. 
Q. Let's just go back to the schools for a l i t t l e while. Did you have, do 

you remember any of the a c t i v i t i e s or s o c i a l functions that they c a r r i e d on 
i n the school at that time? 

A. Well, we used to have dances and we'd have box s o c i a l s , and sometimes we'd 
have a p i c n i c and we'd have a dance afterwards. 

Q. Meetings, I suppose the school was used for meetings as well? 
A. Oh yes, used for meetings and they used i t for church. You wouldn't know 

him, I guess, Archdeacon L i t t l e , he used to come out there. He was the 
one started the services there and prayers. 

Q. Oh, of course we know him. You people never did have a church there, did 
you? 

A. No, we talked about b u i l d i n g one one time and then we'd of had to go i n t o 
quite a b i t of debt and there was only two or three fa m i l i e s there and -



Q. W e l l , t i m e s were h a r d t h e n . 
A. Times were h a r d . 
Q. But p e o p l e had e n j o y e d t h e m s e l v e s when they got t o g e t h e r , d i d n ' t they? 
A. Oh, y e s . I know my f a m i l y , they a l l e n j o y e d i t . They a l l l o o k back on i t 

now. At the time we thought i t was h a r d , you know, but you l o o k back on 
i t and know a l l the good times we d i d have, why, i t k i n d a o f f s e t s the bad 
t i m e s . 

Q. I t was q u i t e an a d v e n t u r e a l r i g h t , wasn't i t ? D i d you b u i l d a new house, 
a f t e r you b u i l t the l i t t l e one? 

A. Yes, I b u i l t t he o l d homestead house and we l i v e d i n i t . B e s i d e s d o i n g 
a l l t he fa r m work and s t u f f , i t took me about two y e a r s to b u i l d t h a t 
house. I t was a l o g house and I had t o saw, k i n d of sawed o f f , you know, 
on each s i d e , and I b u i l t the new house l i k e t h a t . 

Q. How d i d you g e t the s i d e s c u t o f f l i k e t h a t , w i t h one of those buzz saws? 
A. B i g saw m i l l . 
Q. Where d i d you t a k e the l o g s ? 
A. I had them done r i g h t t h e r e . S a w m i l l coming t h r o u g h , sawing lumber t h e r e 

and so I had them move o v e r and do my l o g s f o r me. 
Q. Who was t h e f e l l o w t h a t -
A. C a l v e r t , Herb C a l v e r t . 
Q. Would t h a t be a r e l a t i o n t o F l o y d C a l v e r t ? 
A. He was a b r o t h e r t o F l o y d . 
Q. So a f t e r two y e a r s of b u i l d i n g , w o r k i n g on t h a t house, I guess you j u s t 

d i d n ' t have the time t o spend. 
A. I d i d n ' t have the time to q u i t . I was f a r m i n g and a l l the o t h e r work t h a t 

goes on a t the f a r m , you know, and t r y i n g t o b u i l d t h i s house a t the same 
t i m e . I t too k me two y e a r s b e f o r e I got i t done. 

Q. Where would you have to buy windows and doors? 
A. I bought them from F o w l e r s i n A t h a b a s c a . 
Q. Ot h e r t h a n t h a t , what e l s e would you have had t o buy f o r your house? 

S h i n g l e s ? 
A. The s h i n g l e s I got homemade, R u s s e l l K o s t i k , he had a s h i n g l e m i l l and he 

made them. 
Q. He had a s h i n g l e m i l l ? I've never h e a r d o f a s h i n g l e m i l l . 
A. Oh y e s , he had a good one. He made good s h i n g l e s , darn good s h i n g l e s . 
Q. What d i d he make them out o f , what type of -
A. Any k i n d o f wood. I got mine made out o f s p r u c e . 
Q. What d i d he charge you f o r the s h i n g l e s ? 
A. Two d o l l a r s a pound, I t h i n k . 
Q. So the n a f t e r you moved i n , when d i d you get your f i r s t r a d i o , f o r example? 
A. W e l l , I got t h a t the y e a r I moved i n . No, I got i t b e f o r e we moved i n , i n 

th e o l d homestead when I bought the f i r s t r a d i o . I don't know j u s t what 
y e a r t h a t was now. 

Q. P r o b a b l y i n the l a t e '30s, eh? 
A. I t would be l a t e t h i r t i e s , o r more l i k e l y , i n the '40s. 
Q. And t h a t I suppose you p u r c h a s e d i n A t h a b a s c a as w e l l , eh? 
A. No, we s e n t t o Eaton's f o r t h a t . 
Q. D i d you buy a l o t of t h i n g s t h r o u g h the Eaton's c a t a l o g u e ? 
A. Oh y e s . My w i f e wouldn't buy a n y t h i n g i n A t h a b a s c a i f she c o u l d get i t i n 

E a t o n ' s . She'd always send a m a i l o r d e r . 
Q. I suppose e v e r y t h i n g from c l o t h i n g t o r u b b e r boots to b e d d i n g . 



Q. What would you have bought i n A t h a b a s c a , y o u r g r o c e r i e s ? 
A. Bought my g r o c e r i e s and we bought some c l o t h i n g t h e r e , o f c o u r s e , and 

sometimes we d i d n ' t have the c a s h t o send away but I c o u l d take some wood 
to town and t r a d e i t o f f f o r c l o t h i n g , you know, a t the s t o r e s i n town. 

Q. They would do t h a t , eh? 
A. Y e s , t h e y would. 
Q. Would t h e y a l l o w you t o charge up g r o c e r i e s ? 
A. Oh y e s , t h e y were good t h a t way. Some of them were, as l o n g as you k e p t 

your note c l e a n . 
Q. That means a t the end o f the month you had to pay? 
A. No, g e n e r a l l y i n the f a l l a f t e r h a r v e s t . 
Q. Where d i d Mrs. L e n n i e g e t h e r f i r s t washing machine? 
A. That was from E a t o n ' s . 
Q. W e l l how d i d t h e y s h i p t h a t , by t r a i n ? 
A. They s h i p p e d i t by f r e i g h t on the t r a i n and s h i p p e d i t t o A t h a b a s c a . 
Q. What would i t c o s t you t o , what would you have t o pay, would Eaton's pay 

f o r i t o r d i d you pay the f r e i g h t ? 
A. No, Ea t o n ' s p a i d t o d e l i v e r i t . 
Q. Must've been a g a s o l i n e motor on i t ? 
A. Yes, I ' l l t e l l you a l i t t l e s t o r y about t h a t g a s o l i n e e n g i n e . We had some 

sheep, you know, and the mother t o t h i s l i t t l e lamb had d i e d so we r a i s e d 
him on a b o t t l e , and we always k e p t him i n the house. In a box t h e r e i n 
the house. When i t got on i n the summer time and he was jumping around 
and around, and he'd r u n o u t s i d e and he'd come back i n . And the Mrs. she 
wanted t o wash c l o t h e s one day and she put a l l the c l o t h e s i n a p i l e , 
l a y i n g t h e r e , and he h i d i n t h e r e . So she s t a r t e d the g a s o l i n e motor on, 
boy! t h a t lamb went out of t h e r e . He n e v e r come back. 

Q. You t a l k e d about h a v i n g s e v e r a l c h i l d r e n when you came to A t h a b a s c a . Were 
t h e y b o r n a t home o r were t h e y b o r n i n the h o s p i t a l ? 

A. Some o f them were b o r n i n the h o s p i t a l and two o f them were b o r n a t home. 
Q. D i d you have a m i d w i f e ? 
A. No, a d o c t o r used to come o u t , Dr. Law from T o f i e l d . 
Q. Oh, you had the o t h e r d o c t o r come. 
A. Yes, he'd come o u t from T o f i e l d . 
Q. W e l l , why wouldn't you have had Dr. Myer? 
A. W e l l t h a t was up h e r e . T h i s was a t T o f i e l d . 
Q. Oh, but I'm s a y i n g once you came t o A t h a b a s c a . 
A. Yes, I had, Myers was here a f t e r I come to A t h a b a s c a , he was the o n l y 

d o c t o r h e r e . 
Q. So t h e n he woul d come up t o the home, would he? 
A. Y e s , Law used t o come up and take c a r e of them r i g h t t h e r e i n the house. 
Q. D i d you have any problems w i t h i l l n e s s e s o r anybody get h u r t t h a t you had 

to t a k e them t o the d o c t o r s i n Athabasca? 
A. W e l l , I had my eye poked out f i r s t t h i n g . 
Q. Oh y e s , how d i d t h a t happen? 
A. D r i v i n g a team o f h o r s e s t h r o u g h the bush. T h i s w i l l o w caught on p a r t o f 

the h a r n e s s , you know, and dar n t h i n g broke o f f and f l e w back and went 
r i g h t i n my eye. 

Q. N o t h i n g t h e y c o u l d do t o save the eye? 
A. N o t h i n g . Took i t r i g h t o u t . 
Q. R i g h t h e r e i n Athabasca? 
A. That was out on t h e homestead t h e r e . 



Q. D i d you have t o come i n t o Athabasca? 
A. I came to A t h a b a s c a and I s p e n t , t h a t ' s when Dr. T u r n b u l l was h e r e , and he 

ke p t me t h e r e f o r a week and then t h e y l e t me go home. He thought i t was 
g o i n g t o g e t b e t t e r but I t o l d him l a t e r on t h a t eye w i l l n e v e r get b e t t e r , 
I don't t h i n k t h e r e ' s a n y t h i n g t h e r e t o get b e t t e r . I t h i n k t h a t eye's 
a l l o u t t a t h e r e because i t was s w o l l e n so bad you c o u l d n ' t t e l l . So t h i s 
S a t u r d a y morning I t o l d Mom, I s a y s , why we d i d n ' t have money enough t o run 
to Edmonton. I t o o k e v e r y d a r n cent we had i n the house when I went and I 
went t o Edmonton and I g o t i n t h e r e S a t u r d a y m o r n i n g . No, i t was F r i d a y 
morning cause S a t u r d a y morning t h e y d i d the o p e r a t i o n and c l e a n e d i t up. 

Q. But as f a r as the c h i l d r e n were c o n c e r n e d , no bad i l l n e s s e s o r a n y t h i n g ? 
A. No. They had no bad i l l n e s s e s . 
Q. Other t h a n I suppose the r e g u l a r measles and c h i c k e n pox? 
A. R e g u l a r measles and mumps and a l l t h a t s t u f f and bad c o l d s . 
Q. What d i d you do f o r the k i d s when th e y were i l l l i k e t h a t w i t h c o l d s and so 

on? D i d you have any good -
A. We had our own reme d i e s . One of them was e l e c t r i c o i l . E l e c t r i c o i l 

would c u r e a n y t h i n g as f a r as my w i f e was c o n c e r n e d . They s t i l l had i t 
down here i n the d r u g s t o r e about f i v e y e a r s ago. I don't know i f t h e y have 
i t t h e r e y e t o r n o t . 

Q. W e l l , how would they take i t ? 
A. You drank i t , o r you rubbed i t on or whatever. 
Q. I've ne v e r h e a r d o f i t . 
A. W e l l , i t ' s the s t i c k i e s t d a r n s t u f f , you know. I t was i n a l i t t l e b o t t l e . 

That was a l l our main m e d i c i n e m o s t l y . Another t h i n g was c r a n b e r r i e s . 
Take the j u i c e and g e t them t o d r i n k i t , you know. 

Q. Any o t h e r s t h a t you can t h i n k o f ? 
A. They had t h i s p a i n k i l l e r , t h e y c a l l e d i t , and i t was j u s t f o r c o l d s . I t 

was s t r o n g , I don't know what was i n i t , I t h i n k i t had a l o t of w h i s k y i n 
i t . 

Q. D i d anybody around t h e r e make w h i s k y ? 
A. Oh, t h e r e was l o t s of i t , y e s . 
Q. But t h e n p e o p l e d i d n ' t d r i n k a t dances o r a n y t h i n g -
A. Oh no, no. J u s t i n t h e i r own homes. 
Q. You t a l k e d about w o r k i n g i n town, d o i n g some b u i l d i n g . D i d you e a r n money 

i n any o t h e r way, d i d you do any t r a p p i n g , f o r example? 
A. Oh, I've t r a p p e d some, y e s . Not a g r e a t d e a l but I have. Rats and 

w e a s e l s and -
Q. What would a muskrat b r i n g you i n t h e '30s? 
A. About two d o l l a r s , i t wasn't a bad p r i c e i n them days. 
Q. W e l l I s h o u l d s a y , t h a t ' s q u i t e a l o t a c t u a l l y . 
A. We was g e t t i n d arned low on f l o u r and bread and s t u f f , and I had t h i s 

l i t t l e c o l l i e dog. She was a good c a t t l e dog, I ne v e r thought she was 
good f o r h u n t i n g , you know, but I went out h u n t i n g s q u i r r e l s t h i s a f t e r n o o n 
and she come a l o n g w i t h me. And when I was g o i n g back, we come over t h i s 
o l d beaver dam, t h e r e was a l l water i n i t , and she come o v e r t h r o u g h the 
bush t h e r e and by god she s m e l l e d around the ground t h e r e , and p r e t t y soon 
s t a r t e d d i g g i n g . I s a y s , what the heck i s the m a t t e r w i t h you? what are 
you d i g g i n g t h e r e f o r ? I t r i e d to coax her home, i t wasn't v e r y f a r from 
the house. So I went o v e r and had supper and by g o l l y she was s t i l l 
b a r k i n g and d i g g i n g down t h e r e . I went back down and too k an axe w i t h me 
and she was j u s t about out of s i g h t . She'd dug i n t h i s b e a v e r dam so f a r 



you c o u l d n ' t h a r d l y see h e r . So I got her o u t t a t h e r e and I went a t i t 
w i t h the grub hoe and the axe and dug i t o u t . And I found t h i s r a t den 
down t h e r e . So I was p r e t t y l u c k y , I got 15 r a t s o u t t a t h a t den t h e r e . 
I f t h a t dog hadn't been down t h e r e , I'd n e v e r knew t h e y were t h e r e . And 
t h e y were two d o l l a r s a p i e c e t h e n . 

Q. That was good. You j u s t t r a p p e d m o s t l y around y o u r own -
A. Yes, j u s t around - I never was a t r a p p e r out i n the bush, you know. 

J u s t around once i n a w h i l e t r a p p i n g r a t s back n o r t h t h e r e i n the s p r i n g . 
Q. Were you a moose h u n t e r a t a l l , o r a deer h u n t e r ? 
A. Oh y e s , I was a moose h u n t e r and a deer h u n t e r . 
Q. You a l m o s t had t o do t h a t t o have enough, p r o v i d e enough meat f o r your 

f a m i l y . 
A. S u r e , I had t o . I went out one morning, R u s s e l l K o s t i k who had a s h i n g l e 

m i l l , he was w o r k i n g out t h e r e and I come back t h a t e v e n i n g , and he s a i d , 
do you want to g e t some meat? And I s a y s , you darned r i g h t s I need some 
meat. W e l l , he s a y s , I seen one b i g o l d b u l l moose up here t o n i g h t come 
ov e r the r o a d . So i f you wanna go w i t h me i n the morning, you can r i d e up 
w i t h me t h a t f a r and you can g e t o f f the s l e i g h and w a l k . So I went i n the 
morning and come up t h e r e and I j u s t got o f f the s l e i g h and went 50 y a r d s 
when t h i s o l d moose jumped up. I was c l o s e r to him t h a n I though I was. 
He jumped up and he r u n and I watched him t h r o u g h the bush and he s t o p p e d . 
So I t o o k i t p r e t t y q u i e t around t h e r e and b e f o r e I got t o him, I happened 
to l o o k up and here was a moose l o o k i n g s t r a i g h t i n my f a c e . Set me back 
a l i t t l e b i t , boy! I p u l l e d up the o l d r i f l e and I knocked t h a t one down. 
And I went to go and c u t h i s t h r o a t and h e r e t h e r e was two more s t a n d i n g 
t h e r e . So I got a l l t h r e e o f them. So we had meat t h e n . 

Q. What d i d you do w i t h t h e meat? 
A. The Mrs. used t o can i t i n j a r s , and t h e n I would s l i c e up a l o t of i t and 

dr y i t and smoke i t . When t h a t got d r y , why i t was kept f o r e v e r . 
Q. Now when you say d r i e d , do you mean j u s t i n the sun? o r i n the oven? 
A. No, no, j u s t i n the sun, o u t s i d e where t h e a i r got a t i t . 
Q. And smoking i t , how d i d you go about smoking i t ? 
A. Hang i t up. I made a canvas s t a n d and put a l o t of l i t t l e rods around on 

i t , and I'd b u i l d a smoke down i n the c e n t e r of t h i s t h i n g and i t would a l l 
go t h r o u g h the meat, you s e e . 

Q. How l o n g w o u l d you smoke t h a t meat? 
A. Oh, i t t o o k about t h r e e days. I n e v e r smoked i t a l l a t one t i m e . Smoke i t 

a l i t t l e b i t f o r a day o r two and l e t i t r e s t a w h i l e , t h a t was b e t t e r 
meat. 

Q. D i d you e v e r t a k e wheat i n t o town t o be ground i n t o f l o u r ? 
A. Y e s , I've done t h a t , yes. Used t o be two d o l l a r s a hundred. Here they 

j u s t waste i t , t h e y d i d n ' t have the r e a l f l o u r m i l l s . They d i d n ' t do a 
v e r y good j o b of i t . Bran was, a l o t o f f l o u r i n i t , so we used to use 
t h a t b r a n f o r p o r r i d g e i n the m o rning. But t h a t ' s the t h i n g we used t o 
do down i n T o f i e l d . The b i g f l o u r m i l l a t Mundare, we always took wheat 
t h e r e i n the f a l l , g e t a l o a d ground up a t one t i m e . 

Q. I thought Mundare was j u s t famous f o r k u b a s s a , Mr. L e n n i e ? But they ground 
f l o u r t h e r e t o o , eh? What would your t a x e s have been i n those days i n the 
e a r l y '30s? 

A. Here? About t e n d o l l a r s a q u a r t e r , I t h i n k i t was. 
Q. Would somebody come around and c o l l e c t those or would you have to come i n 

to A t h a b a s c a ? 



A. They had t o pay i t t o the s e c r e t a r y a t the s c h o o l . He c o l l e c t e d the t a x e s . 
Q. That h e l p e d pay the t e a c h e r , no doubt. Where d i d you g e t your f i r s t 

t e l e v i s i o n , Mr. L e n n i e ? 
A. F i r s t t e l e v i s i o n I bought - my memory's g e t t i n bad, I don't know - we were 

i n Edmonton, '56 I t h i n k i t was. 
Q. D i d you say you were i n Edmonton? 
A. Yes, we moved to Edmonton. I got a j o b a t F o r t Saskatchewan, b u i l d i n g on 

t h a t b r i d g e t h e r e . So we moved i n t o Edmonton and had Diane and Gordon, 
and S h e i l a was g o i n g t o s c h o o l y e t t h e n . Diane was i n Grade 12, she 
f i n i s h e d t h a t y e a r . I was head c a r p e n t e r on t h a t j o b . 

Q. Were you? W e l l , a r e you a c t u a l l y a c a r p e n t e r by t r a d e ? 
A. Y e s , y e s , I was. 
Q. I see. What o t h e r t h i n g s d i d you b u i l d ? D i d you b u i l d o t h e r b u i l d i n g s i n 

A t habasca? 
A. Oh y e s . I worked on the h o t e l i n A t h a b a s c a and I worked on the b r i d g e . 

When th e y b u i l t the b r i d g e , I was head c a r p e n t e r t h e r e . 
Q. Here i n A thabasca? I n the 1950s? 
A. Y e s , y e s . Then I worked on some houses around t h e r e . I b u i l t an a d d i t i o n 

on t o t h e c h u r c h h a l l out a t B a p t i s t e Lake where t h e y have t h a t , A n g l i c a n s 
have t h a t c h u r c h out t h e r e to have Sunday S c h o o l and take k i d s out t h e r e on 
h o l i d a y s i n summer t i m e . 

Q. You don't mean Camp Metawawin? 
A. That's i t , y e s , Camp Metawawin. They had a l i t t l e b u i l d i n g t h e r e so t h e n 

t h e y g o t me t o b u i l d t h i s a d d i t i o n on. I b u i l t a l l t h a t h a l l and k i t c h e n 
and e v e r y t h i n g . 

Q. Yes, I spent a summer t h e r e a t camp when I was about 12. So when were you 
a b l e t o s t a r t s e n d i n g or s h i p p i n g c a t t l e or hogs t o market because t h e r e 
must've come a time when you d i d n ' t j u s t need i t f o r your own purposes o r 
f o r f ood? 

A. I s t a r t e d , t r a i n used to t a k e them t h e r e , one o r two o r w h a t e v e r , and you 
s h i p them to Edmonton. 

Q. D i d you s h i p i t t h r o u g h the Creamery? D i d n ' t t h e y buy -
A. No, t h e y d i d n ' t buy beef o r meat. 
Q. They d i d a t one t i m e , y e s . Not o n l y eggs and cream but t h e y used t o , you 

c o u l d s h i p hogs t h r o u g h them and I don't know about c a t t l e , but I am s u r e , 
seems t o me t h a t I've r e a d i n the o l d A t h a b a s c a Echos. But you n e v e r 
s h i p p e d t h r o u g h them? 

A. No, I don't remember t h a t . 
Q. Do you remember a f e l l o w by the name of Jimmy S e r v i c e ? 
A. Jimmy S e r v i c e , y e s . He used to h a u l f o r me. 
Q. Was i t l i v e s t o c k or g r a i n ? 
A. L i v e s t o c k . 
Q. Wasn't t h e r e somebody by the name of Shewbridge as w e l l ? 
A. Shewbridge, y a . 
Q. But he had an i n s u r a n c e agency, d i d n ' t he? 
A. I n s u r a n c e agency and r e a l e s t a t e o f f i c e . 
Q. He d i d n ' t have t r u c k i n g , Shewbridge? 
A. No, t h e y d i d n ' t have t r u c k i n g , j u s t r e a l e s t a t e , y a . 
Q. I'm g o i n g t o j u s t go back a l i t t l e b i t . Can you t e l l a n y t h i n g funny t h a t 

happened, a n y t h i n g u n u s u a l t h a t happened w h i l e you were home s i t t i n g out 
t h e r e , Mr. L e n n i e ? Any i n c i d e n t s t h a t you can r e c a l l ? 



A. W e l l , l e t ' s see now. 
Q. T h a t ' s something you'd have to t h i n k a b o u t , I i m a g i n e , eh? 
A. Yes. 
Q. I suppose p e o p l e j u s t worked so hard and k i n d of kept t h e i r noses to the 

g r i n d s t o n e . 
A. Yes, y e s , k e p t t h e i r noses to the g r i n d s t o n e . 
Q. Have you e v e r f l o w n , Mr. L e n n i e ? 
A. Oh y e s . I've been i n a i r p l a n e s . 
Q. Have you t r a v e l l e d q u i t e a l o t ? 
A. W e l l no, n o t a g r e a t d e a l but some. 
Q. Do you e n j o y your t e l e v i s i o n ? 
A. Oh y e s . I e n j o y e d the p l a n e . I g e n e r a l l y f l y t o BC cause I have two 

d a u g h t e r s a t C r a n b r o o k . I go t o Edmonton and t a k e a p l a n e from t h e r e and 
f l y t o C r a n b r o o k . 

Q. D i d you t a k e p a r t i n any o r g a n i z a t i o n s o r - ? 
A. W e l l , I was on the s c h o o l board as l o n g as I l i v e d out t h e r e . 
Q. I n what c a p a c i t y ? 
A. I was the c h a i r m a n . 
Q. So what were your d u t i e s as chairman? 
A. Set a s c h o o l budget and s t u f f , you know. H i r e and f i r e the t e a c h e r , make 

sure the wood was t h e r e , pay f o r i t . 
Q. Who u s u a l l y d i d the j a n i t o r work? 
A. F i r s t few y e a r s I was t h e r e , we d i d n ' t have no j a n i t o r , t e a c h e r d i d the 

j a n i t o r work. 
Q. Oh, the t e a c h e r s t a r t e d the f i r e s i n the w i n t e r . W e l l , where d i d the 

t e a c h e r s t a y ? Was t h e r e a t e a c h e r a g e ? 
A. One y e a r we had t h i s one t e a c h e r , she boarded r i g h t i n the s c h o o l . I 

p a r t i t i o n e d o f f p a r t of the s c h o o l c o r n e r f o r h e r , and she s l e p t o v e r a t 
our p l a c e but she a t e h e r meals over a t the s c h o o l . 

Q. You n e v e r a c t u a l l y had a t e a c h e r a g e t h e r e t h e n . 
A. I n l a t e r y e a r s , y e s , a f t e r t h e y formed the b i g s c h o o l d i s t r i c t . Then we 

got the t e a c h e r a g e . 
Q. Now when you say the b i g s c h o o l d i s t r i c t , t h a t means what? 
A. T h a t ' s a s c h o o l d i v i s i o n . 
Q. B e f o r e t h a t you were i n what th e y c a l l e d N e l s o n - ? 
A. No, we were j u s t o u t s i d e N e l s o n . 
Q. You were i n the L o c a l Improvement D i s t r i c t ? 
A. Y e s , L.I.D. t i l l t h e y formed the c o u n t y . 
Q. And t h a t was i n 1959. 
A. Yes, something l i k e t h a t , y e s . 
Q. So o t h e r t h a n the s c h o o l c h a i r m a n , what o t h e r o r g a n i z a t i o n s ? 
A. I used t o t a k e p a r t i n the c h u r c h and any o t h e r o r g a n i z a t i o n s , they 

g e n e r a l l y s t u c k me i n t o i t . 
Q. How about U n i t e d Farmers? 
A. No, I n e v e r j o i n e d U n i t e d Farmers. I n e v e r had enough g r a i n and s t u f f t o 

s e l l . 
Q. D i d you expand i n t o c a t t l e r a t h e r t h a n g r a i n f a r m i n g ? 
A. Yes, I r e a l l y l i k e d c a t t l e b e s t , y e s . I was always a c a t t l e man. 
Q. When d i d you a c t u a l l y r e t i r e , Mr. L e n n i e ? 
A. When I moved to Edmonton i n the '50s t h e r e . W e l l , I q u i t f a r m i n g b e f o r e 

t h a t , i t was i n '50 when I r e a l l y q u i t f a r m i n g . 1950, I t h i n k i t was. 



Q. So most o f y o u r f a m i l y i s n ' t here anymore, not i n A t h a b a s c a , eh? Gordon 
i s h e r e and -? 

A. Gordon and D o r o t h y , and S h e i l a ' s i n R o c h e s t e r . 
Q. And t h e r e s t of them a r e a l l o v e r . 
A. Y e s , we got f o u r i n Edmonton, two i n Cranbrook, and two i n Rocky M o u n t a i n 

House. 
Q. So t h e y ' r e a l l i n A l b e r t a . 
A. A l l but C r a n b r o o k . 
Q. I s h o u l d ' v e asked you about when you got m a r r i e d , what k i n d of wedding you 

had. Weddings were p r e t t y s i m p l e i n those days, eh? 
A. I t was a v e r y s i m p l e wedding. We got m a r r i e d i n my w i f e ' s p a r e n t s ' home, 

and we had a b i g wedding dance i n my p a r e n t s ' home t h a t n i g h t . 
Q. I suppose the meal was j u s t p r e p a r e d by your - ? 
A. P r e p a r e d by t h e l o c a l l a d i e s . 
Q. And you s t a r t e d out w i t h j u s t a minimun amount of money, I suppose. 
A. I t h i n k I had seven d o l l a r s a f t e r the wedding was o v e r . I had been b a c h i n g 

you s e e , and I had t h i s house to move i n t o . I had a few g r o c e r i e s i n 
t h e r e t o s t a r t out w i t h . 

Q. But e v e r y b o d y seemed to make out okay and p r o s p e r . 
A. Everybody made ou t okay and p r o s p e r e d and seemed to e n j o y l i f e t o i t s 

f u l l e s t . They had more time then than t h e y do now. 
Q. Yes, i t seemed l i k e i t was n o t h i n g to h i t c h up t h e team on a Sunday 

a f t e r - n o o n and go o f f f o r the day. 
A. S u r e , go out f o r the day. You don't have t h a t time any more even i f t h e y 

got c a r s t o t r a v e l w i t h . I t ' s a shame t h a t people don't take time to 
l i v e . I know F r a n c e s O v e r a c k e r and W i l f r e d , t h e y got them two c h i l d r e n , 
w e l l , t h e y have no time t o t h e m s e l v e s . Sunday, any day, t h e y ' r e out 
p l a y i n g b a l l . D r i v i n g the k i d s around, p l a y i n g b a l l . I come out t h e r e 
the o t h e r day and F r a n c e s and W i l f r e d j u s t come home from B a r r h e a d . They'd 
been out to a ballgame out t h e r e . I don't know, i t seems r i d i c u l o u s t o go 
t o B a r r h e a d t o p l a y b a l l . 

Q. But we're g o i n g f a r t h e r and f a r t h e r a f i e l d a l l the t i m e . 
A. T h a t ' s r i g h t . F a s t e r and f a s t e r c a r s . 
Q. You know, we s t u c k p r e t t y c l o s e t o home i n our own a r e a s when we were young 

and now o u r k i d s j u s t seem to be g o i n g f a r t h e r and f a r t h e r . I don't know 
i f the f a m i l i e s a r e as c l o s e any more. They seem to be j u s t g o i n g o f f i n 
e v e r y d i r e c t i o n a l l the t i m e . What, f o r example, would you do w i t h your 
f a m i l y i n the o l d days? 

A. We'd go v i s i t some of the n e i g h b o r s or something l i k e t h a t . Maybe go out 
p i c k i n g b e r r i e s . 

Q. D i d you p l a y c a r d s ? 
A. Y e s , we p l a y e d c a r d s i n the e v e n i n g s . 
Q. D i d you e v e r have s u r p r i s e p a r t i e s ? 
A. Card p a r t i e s ? Y e s , we had l o t s o f them out t h e r e at F e r g u s o n . C r i b 

p a r t i e s . 
Q. Y e s , I guess t h e y were the good o l d days, weren't they? 
A. Yes. They were to me, anyway. 
Q. Our d a u g h t e r was j u s t l o o k i n g a t some of the t h i n g s I wrote i n my s t o r y 

t h a t I'm w r i t i n g about my f a m i l y and l i f e on t h e f a r m . She s a i d , I don't 
t h i n k our l i v e s w i l l be q u i t e as i n t e r e s t i n g as y o u r s . 



A. I remember one y e a r my h o r s e s a l l d i e d and I had a team of oxen. I went to 
town, had t o go t o town f o r s o m e t h i n g , g r o c e r i e s and s t u f f . The roads 
were bad, and you know I was gone a week to make t h a t t r i p . S h e i l a , our 
youngest g i r l , who n e v e r rode my h o r s e h a r d l y , and I was t e l l i n g h e r about 
t h i s t r i p w i t h t h e s e oxen. What d i d you do i t f o r , Dad? I s a y s , To put 
some f l o u r i n your b e l l y . 

Q. W e l l , how d i d you manage i f you were gone f o r a week? 
A. Oh, my f a m i l y was good. They worked on the f a r m and k e p t — i t was i n the 

s p r i n g of the y e a r and I wasn't d o i n g any f a r m i n g y e t . I camped out 
a l o n g s i d e the r o a d . I had my own grub w i t h me. 

Q. What woul d you have t a k e n a l o n g f o r grub then? 
A. D r i e d meat and b r e a d and b u t t e r , few p o t a t o e s , and m i l k . 
Q. When you g o t t o A t h a b a s c a , d i d you s t a y i n town a t a l l o v e r n i g h t ? 
A. O v e r n i g h t , I s t a y e d one n i g h t and n e x t day I s t a r t e d f o r home a g a i n . 
Q. D i d you s t a y a t t h e h o t e l ? 
A. No, no, c o u l d n ' t a f f o r d t h a t even i f i t was cheap. No, I had my own 

b l a n k e t s and I s l e p t r i g h t on the ground. 
Q. W e l l , t h e r e was an o l d l i v e r y b a r n , you d i d n ' t p a r k your two oxen t h e r e ? 
A. No. A n o t h e r t h i n g was t h a t d a r n h i l l to c l i m b , e a s t h i l l . Went s t r a i g h t 

up t h a t h i l l , the r o a d d i d . Wasn't c u t down y e t t h e n , l i k e i t i s now. 
They were s t e e r s r a i s e d r i g h t on the farm. 

Q. I see, they were f a i r l y tame t h e n . But s t i l l , you had t o h a r n e s s them up. 
A. Oh y e s , i t ' s n o t h i n g t o b r e a k i n g oxen, though, you put a h a r n e s s on them. 

The main t h i n g i s t o g e t them to go. 
Q. They were e a s i e r t h a n h o r s e s , then? 
A. Oh y e s . 
Q. But the t h i n g was to g e t them moving, eh? That's why the t r i p t o o k you so 

l o n g , eh? 
A. S u r e , t h a t ' s why i t took so l o n g because t h e y were so s l o w . But t h e y were 

p o w e r f u l , boy! Oh, t h e y were p o w e r f u l . I had a l o t of good h o r s e s i n my 
day but I n e v e r had any t h a t c o u l d o u t p u l l a team of oxen, 

Q. I s t h a t r i g h t ? So d i d you use them a t a l l on t h e farm f o r any farm work? 
A. I j u s t had them f o r about two y e a r s . Yes, I used them f o r farm work. I 

don't know what but h o r s e s got some k i n d of d i s e a s e and t h e y j u s t d i e d 
e v e r y y e a r . I'd go and buy a n o t h e r one and t h a t one would g e t s i c k and 
d i e . They used t o c a l l i t swamp f e v e r , whatever t h a t was. 

Q. Where would you buy your h o r s e s ? 
A. Oh, around the c o u n t r y h e r e . 
Q. I suppose you c o u l d always buy them from the n e i g h b o r s , eh? 
A. Oh y e s , i f t h e n e i g h b o r had one t o s e l l , I ' d buy from him. 
Q. You had mentioned you had r a i s e d sheep f o r a w h i l e . 
A. Y e s , I d i d have sheep. 
Q. D i d you use the meat, as w e l l ? 
A. Oh y e s , t h a t ' s what I k e p t them f o r m o s t l y . 
Q. They were k i n d of m i s e r a b l e a n i m a l s t o keep though, weren't t h e y ? I'm 

s a y i n g t h a t from e x p e r i e n c e because my dad k e p t some f o r a few y e a r s . You 
had t o have such a good fen c e t o keep them i n . D i d t h e y e v e r b l o a t on 
you? 

A. Oh y e s . You h e a r d of Dr. B e l l o w s ? W e l l , I used Dr. B e l l o w s . 
Q. Y e s . That seemed t o f i x them? 
A. That f i x e d them. 



Q. The r e a s o n I ask i s because ray f a t h e r had a s p e c i a l l i t t l e m i x t u r e t h a t he 
used t o u s e . We used t o make a m i x t u r e o f m i l k and soapsuds, and we'd 
pour t h a t down t h e i r t h r o a t s . Dad s a i d we had t o keep them on the run f o r 
a w h i l e and t h a t seemed to c u r e them f o r the most p a r t . O c c a s i o n a l l y we 
l o s t one, of c o u r s e , and the n he'd s l a u g h t e r i t f o r meat. But th e y were 
m i s e r a b l e l i t t l e c r e a t u r e s . D i d you shear the sheep y o u r s e l f ? 

A. Yes. 
Q. And d i d you s e l l the wool? 
A. Sometimes, and the Mrs. always kept one f l e e c e f o r h e r s e l f . She'd c a r d i t 

and s p i n i t . 
Q. Who used t o come around g e t t i n g the wool? Was t h e r e a t r u c k o r d i d you 

h i r e somebody s p e c i a l to come and p i c k up the wool? 
A. Oh, I used to s h i p mine to Edmonton, t h a t A s s o c i a t i o n , Sheep Growers 

A s s o c i a t i o n . I j o i n e d t h a t when I assumed I had something t o s e l l . 
Because you c o u l d n ' t g e t n o t h i n g f o r a sheep here i n town. You were l u c k y 
t o g e t f o u r o r f i v e d o l l a r s , you know. 

Q. Where d i d you g e t your sheep from o r i g i n a l l y ? 
A. I had sheep when we was down i n Chipman and T o f i e l d , but when I came to the 

homestead I s o l d them a l l o f f . I got s t a r t e d h e r e , I don't know i f you 
know t h i s o l d Frenchman used t o l i v e e a s t o f C o l i n t o n - he's dead now -
B i a u l t . I to o k out some l o g s f o r him one time and t r a d e d them f o r sheep. 

Q. A n o t h e r t r a d e , eh? I guess a l o t of p e o p l e d i d t h a t i n the o l d days. You 
a l m o s t had t o when t h e r e was no money. 

A. W e l l , you c o u l d n ' t s e l l n o t h i n g f o r cash so you had to t r a d e . 
Q. D i d you e v e r h i r e h e l p f o r the farm? D i d you e v e r have anyone w o r k i n g f o r 

you? 
A. No. J u s t me and my f a m i l y . 
Q. Because I know some o f the I n d i a n p e o p l e used t o come by a s k i n g f o r work 

when I l i v e d on the farr a . 
A. Oh y e s , I d i d h i r e them one f a l l f o r s t o o k i n g . I t was the l a s t f a l l I used 

a b i n d e r and I had them s t o o k i n g . 
Q. How many boys d i d you say you had? 
A. Fo u r . One was k i l l e d o v e r s e a s and t h e r e ' s t h r e e h e r e . Donald, Gordon, 

and Rodney. 
Q. So t h e r e was l o t s of h e l p t h e r e . 
A. Yes. But Do n a l d was the o n l y one o l d enough and b i g enough t o h e l p me on 

the f a r m . 
Q. What would you say i s something v e r y s p e c i a l you d i d i n your l i f e ? 
A. B e i n g a cowboy, b r e a k i n g h o r s e s . 
Q. R e a l l y ? You were a cowboy? I n A l b e r t a ? T e l l us about t h a t . 
A. W e l l , Dad had t h i s b i g r a n c h . G e n e r a l l y kept about 500 head of c a t t l e and 

500 head o f h o r s e s , and I s t a r t e d out w o r k i n g f o r him. He was q u i t e a 
r i d e r h i m s e l f and so was h i s w i f e . So we were f o o l i n g around t h e r e one 
Sunday and roped t h i s b r o n c . A l l r i g h t A l e x , he s a y s , c l i m b a b o a r d . That 
was my s t a r t . 

Q. Boy, t h a t was a dangerous t h i n g I would t h i n k . 
A. I rode q u i t e a few of them a f t e r t h a t . Broke them f o r him. I'd b r e a k them 

and he'd t a k e them t o Edmonton and s e l l them. 
Q. D i d he pay you f o r d o i n g t h a t ? 
A. Pay me? Oh y e s , he p a i d me. Day wages, two d o l l a r s , i t was p a r t o f my 

j o b . 



Q. A n y t h i n g e l s e t h a t you l o o k back on your l i f e now and t h i n k t h a t was k i n d 
of s p e c i a l o r d i f f e r e n t ? Which y e a r s were t h e b e s t y e a r s of your l i f e ? 

A. Oh, I t h i n k from 17 to 25. I was good u n t i l I l o s t my eye. I was a p r e t t y 
l u c k y man. I had good h e a l t h p r a c t i c a l l y a l l my l i f e . I never had a 
r e a l l y bad s i c k n e s s t i l l two y e a r s ago when th e y thought I had d i a b e t e s . 
They put me on d i a b e t e s f o r t h r e e y e a r s and then t h i s y e a r when I got h u r t , 
and went t o the h o s p i t a l , I found out I never had d i a b e t e s . So I took a l l 
them n e e d l e s and p i l l s f o r n o t h i n g . 

Q. So from the ti m e you were 17 t o 25 -
A. I was s i n g l e and f r e e and c o u l d do what I l i k e d when I l i k e d . 
Q. D i d you wander about a l o t i n those days? 
A. W e l l , I went o v e r s e a s f o r one t h i n g , two y e a r s . Then I come back but I 

d i d n ' t do t o o much t r a v e l l i n g a r ound. I'd maybe go away a hundred m i l e s 
o r so and g e t a j o b o r something, maybe break a h o r s e . 

Q. Where d i d you l e a r n t o do c a r p e n t r y work? 
A. I l e a r n e d t h a t from an o l d c a r p e n t e r a f t e r I come back from the army. He 

was a r e a l c a r p e n t e r and he l e a r n e d me the t r a d e . 
Q. What do you t h i n k about times t o d a y , Mr. L e n n i e ? 
A. They're good, r i g h t now, I t h i n k . For the young p e o p l e and f o r o l d 

p e o p l e , t o o . Sure, c o u l d n ' t have i t any b e t t e r . I sometimes wonder about 
these young f e l l o w s s t a r t i n g out i n l i f e , f a r m e r s , and g o i n g i n t o a l l t h i s 
d e b t . I o f t e n wonder i f t h e y ' l l e v e r g e t out of a l l t h a t l o a d . 

Q. W e l l , some of them don't. They're l o o s i n g t h e i r l a n d . 
A. L o o s i n g t h e i r l a n d , t h a t ' s what I was a f r a i d o f , you know. That's no good 

f o r t he c o u n t r y . 
Q. No, i t i s n ' t , and i t ' s p a r t i c u l a r l y sad when p e o p l e l o s e t h e i r f a m i l y 

f a r m s . 
A. Su r e , l o s e your f a m i l y farm and your home i s gone and where do you go? 
Q. I t h i n k t h e r e ' r e a few young p e o p l e , not j u s t f a r m e r s , t h a t owe a l o t of 

money. 
A. Sur e , a l l young p e o p l e a r e h a v i n g a hard t i m e . 
Q. But t h e s e young p e o p l e seem t o have money t o buy boats and t r a i l e r s and 

s k i d o o s . What do you t h i n k about a l l t h i s space e x p l o r a t i o n t h e s e days? 
A. Space e x p l o r a t i o n I t h i n k they s h o u l d f o r g e t i t . I t h i n k t h e y ' r e j u s t 

s p e n d i n g and b u r n i n g up a l o t of money f o r n o t h i n g . What a r e they gonna 
prove? They c l a i m t o have l a n d e d on the moon, w e l l , what good has i t done? 

Q. W e l l , maybe t h e y f e e l t h a t some day t h i s p l a n e t w i l l n ot be, we may not be 
a b l e t o l i v e on i t and may have t o go i n t o space t o s u r v i v e . 

A. W e l l , t h a t may be something, I don't know. 
Q. Thank you v e r y much, Mr. L e n n i e . I t h i n k w e ' l l c l o s e u n l e s s you have 

a n y t h i n g e l s e t h a t you'd l i k e to add? Have you any o l d photographs? 
A. I don't know. I t h i n k S h e i l a ' s g ot a l l them. 
Q. We have a camera at the a r c h i v e s where we take a p i c t u r e of your p i c t u r e , 

and we'd l i k e t o put them i n the a r c h i v e s t o p r e s e r v e them. I suppose I 
c o u l d t a l k t o S h e i l a . 

A. Y e s , I'm p r e t t y s u r e she's got the p i c t u r e s . T a l k t o her about i t anyway, 
and s h e ' l l have an i d e a a l i t t l e more. 

Q. Okay, thank you e v e r so much Mr. L e n n i e , t h i s was v e r y i n t e r e s t i n g . 
A. I'm s u r e you're welcome. 


